
~~ MISSOURI 
DEPARTMENT OF 

iwa;:,"~.1/EI NATURAL RESOURCES 
Soil and Water Conservation Program 

AGENDA 
Missouri Soil and Water Districts Commission 

Lewis and Clark State Office Building 
LaCharrette Conference Room 

Jefferson City, Missouri 
February I I, 20I5 

9:30 a.m. 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
B. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
C. DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 

a. Election of Commission Chair and Vice-Chair 
b. Regional Conservation Partnership Program Award 

D. SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM DIRECTOR'S 
COMMENTS 
I. FYI 5 Fund Status and Supplemental Cost-Share Allocations 
2. FYI4 District Grant Expenditures 
3. FYI4 Cost-Share Review 
4. FYI 5/FYI 6 Budget Updates 
5. Plan for the Future Program Delivery and Operations Subcommittee 
6. Missouri Association of Soil and Water Conservation Districts 20 I 4 Resolution 

Response 
7. Plan for the Future Conservation Practices Subcommittee 
8. Missouri Regional Grazing Schools 
9. University of Missouri-Using Missouri Data to Understand Capabilities of the 

APEX Model to Estimate Nutrients and Sediment in Runoff 
E. REQUEST 

(If an additional supervisor request is received in advance of this meeting, it may be 
presented to the commission at that meeting.) 
I. Supervisor Requests 

a. Ste. Genevieve SWCD 
2. Oregon SWCD Warm Fork of the Spring River SALT Project---: Add Practice in 

Adjacent HUC to Meet Goals of Watershed Assessment 
3. University of Missouri - Support for the MU Soil Health Assessment Center 
4. Cape Girardeau SWCD Cost-Share Maintenance Violation DWP-OI Sediment 

Retention Structure 
F. NEW BUSINESS 
G. REPORTS 

I. University of Missouri 
2. Depmiment of Conservation 
3. Department of Agriculture 



MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
February 11, 2015 
Page 2 

4. Natural Resources Conservation Service 
5. Missouri Association of Soil and Water Conservation Districts 

H. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
I. SUGGESTED DATE(S) OF NEXT MEETINGS 

April 8, 2015 
J. ADJOURNMENT 

Those wishing to address the commission on any of the above issues need to contact a program 
staff member, Theresa Mueller or sign up on the comment card at the commission meeting. 

If you have any questions regarding this meeting, special accommodation needs, or would like a 
copy of any material provided at the commission meeting, please contact Theresa Mueller at 
573-526-4662. 

Soil & Water Districts Commission may go into closed session at this meeting if such action is 
approved by a majority vote of the commission members who constitute a quorum to discuss 
legal, confidential, or privileged matters under§ 610.021(1), RSMo 2000; personnel actions 
under §610.021(3); personnel records or applications under §610.021(13), records under§ 
610.021(14), or audit issues under§ 610.021(17), which are otherwise protected from disclosure 
by law. 



Master Fund Status Summary D. 1. 

'-- - - --- -- -
# Contract % Contract #Contract 

District Allocated Obligated %Obligated Contracts Pal'.ment Pal'.ment Pal'.ments Pending 
r-
[FY: 2015 Fund Code:R .Froject:A WM - ANIMAL WASTE MANAGEMENT 

$995,000.00 $379,803.40 38.17% 23 $169,079.51 16.99% 10 $74,984.00 

[FY: 20il.5 Fund Code:R Project:CC - PILOT COVER CROP 

$602,200.00 $161,283.00 26.78% 226 $0.00 0.00% 0 $600.00 

IF¥: 20il.5 Fund Code:R Project:GM - GRAZING MANAGEMENT 

$4,826,676.00 $3,180,855.17 65.90% 985 $969,708.16 20.09% 272 $339,884.37 

IFY: 2015 Fund Code:R Project:IM - IRRIGA TJON MANAGEMENT 

$1,318,509.00 $885,359.65 67.15% 182 $289,157.78 21.93% 54 $70,382.25 

IFY: 2015 Fund Code:R Pi:oject:NP - NUTRliENT & PEST MANAGEMENT 

$957,458.00 $486,082.10 50.77% 526 $425,394.30 44.43% 475 $426.00 

-
IFY: 20~ 5 Fund Code:R Project:SA - SENSITIVE AREAS 

$2, 706,269.30 $1,165,038.60 43.05% 280 $352,894.98 13.04% 102 $110,768.52 

[FY: 2015 Fund Code:R Project:SGE - SHEET AND RILL I GULLY EROSION 

$20,716,110.00 $14,731,790.76 71.11% 2777 $7,560,382.61 36.50% 1366 $913,244. I 6 

Y: 2015 Fund Code:R Project: WE - WOODLAND EROSION 

$1,767,244.75 $836,355.94 47.33% 284 $225,069.78 12.74% 68 $58,766.75 

Subtotal for R I $33,889,467.05 $21,826,568.62 64.41% 5283 $9,991,687.12 29.48% 2347 $1,569,056.05 

-
[FY: 2015 Fund Code:SN Project:BDSP-31 - BUFFER SINKHOLE IMP 

$23,100.00 $900.00 3.90% 8 $900.00 3.90% 3 $1,500.00 

---
[FY: 2015 Fund Code:SN Project:SN087 - LOWER LOUTRE 

$10,109.90 $10,109.90 100.00% 1 $10,109.90 100.00% 1 $0.00 

iFY: 2015 Fund Code:SN Project:SN09il - ST. JOHN'S BAYOU 

02/05/2015 10:53:56AM Pagel of 4 



Master Fund Status Summary 
# Contract % Contract #Contract 

District Allocated Obligated %Obligated Contracts Pa:yment Pa:yment Pa:yments Pending 

$18,600.70 $18,600.70 100.00% 1 $18,600.70 100.00% 1 $0.00 

~C~N~ C1REEI). ANO UTT~El 
$45,383.00 $28,510.19 62.82% 8 $7,462.66 16.44% 4 $0.00 

Y:20U Fund Code:SN P.r.oj~9t:SN094 - IJ'VRP C~J\:R. 
$4,900.00 $0.00 0.00% 1 $0.00 0.00% 0 $3,091.30 

- -- ' 

Y: 2015 Fund ICode:SN Pr.oj~eft:SN0,95 - lcJIPPE!R ~I~_ Cl{E'.EK 

$44,714.00 $15,296.22 34.21% 15 $3,986.00 8.91% 4 $0.00 

¥ :20Il!5 Fqnd Code:S_N 
- -7 - . -·-~ ' ~ 

14.16% 1 $0.00 0.00% 0 $0.00 

.. ~ 

iF]!;J0115 Fgl!d· CQ<l~ :_SN ~111()j~~!§N0~8 ~WARM FQ~ <'lF SPRING 'lmi'ER 
$11,450.00 $0.00 0.00% 0 $0.00 0.00% 0 $0.00 

ri. 
f'Yi: 20lf~ 1Fund Co~e:SN 

87.65% 7 $21,890.72 42.32% 3 $0.00 

f¥: 2Q[ 5 FuQd <Code:SN 
0.00% 0 $0.00 0.00% 0 $0.00 

[F"\r: 201,s J,?un~ Co-Ue:SN Project:$Nl!O\I. - ClU>QKED_mvEll 
$65,000.00 $42,337.24 65.13% 4 $27,852.69 42.85% 3 $0.00 

[F'~:20\l. 5 Fund C:9<1e:SN :P.r.oj~ct;SN>il!Oi -_.so~n WY Ac;J(Q)N~A 
$55,432.00 $45,164.88 81.48% 6 $23,796.50 42.93% 3 $0.00 

ProJ~ct-:SN1!0J - IL@W!ER N;EAl:DWATERS OF JAMES RiliVElt 
$73,740.00 $661.79 0.90% 1 $661.79 0.90% 1 $0.00 

~-

IF'\! : 20i '5 Fund Code:SN Project:SN1!04 - CLAIRK I W@IJF CREEK 

02/05/2015 10:53 :56AM Page 2 of 4 



Master Fund Status Summary 
# Contract % Contract #Contract 

District Allocated Obligated %Obligated Contracts Pa:yment Pa:yment Pa:yments Pending 

$55,000.00 $22,109.52 40.20% 14 $7,431.40 13.51% 2 $5,839.76 

Subtotal for SN I $534,516.60 $235,353.86 44.03% 67 $122,692.36 22.95% 25 $10,431.06 

0210512015 10:53 :56AM Page 3 of 4 



Master Fund Status Summary 

Master Fund Status Summary (2015) 
Subtotal for R I $33,889,467.05 $21,826,568.62 64.41% 5283 $9,991,687.12 29.48% 2347 l'$i,s~9~o~6~os;I 

r 

Subtotal for SN I $534,516.60 $235,353.86 44.03% 67 .$122,692.36 22.95% 25 ~$0,4:3J..06 : 
~ ·-r -~- ~. 

Report Totals I $34,423,983.65 $22,061,922.48 64.09% 5350 $10,114,379.48 29.38% 2372 r n.~99,4·87.11 

02/05/2015 10:53 :56AM Page 4 of 4 



Number of 
Districts Receiving 

Supplemental 
Allocations =   75

 Total 
Supplemental 

Allocation as of    
2-05-2015 

Number of 
Districts Receiving 

Supplemental 
Allocations =   75

 Total 
Supplemental 

Allocation as of    
2-05-2015 

State Totals 5,294,192.00$     Polk 60,000.00$          
Dent 300,000.00$        Shelby 60,000.00$          
Texas 300,000.00$        Grundy 60,000.00$          
Pettis 182,192.00$        Pemiscot 60,000.00$          
Clinton 180,000.00$        Adair 40,000.00$          
Phelps 180,000.00$        Newton 40,000.00$          
Butler 160,000.00$        Platte 40,000.00$          
Buchanan 140,000.00$        Randolph 40,000.00$          
Lawrence 120,000.00$        Scott 40,000.00$          
Oregon 120,000.00$        St Francois 40,000.00$          
Douglas 120,000.00$        Taney 40,000.00$          
McDonald 120,000.00$        Cole 40,000.00$          
Andrew 120,000.00$        Scotland 40,000.00$          
Crawford 113,500.00$        Jefferson 40,000.00$          
Gasconade 100,000.00$        Cape Girardeau 40,000.00$          
Ozark 100,000.00$        Harrison 40,000.00$          
Barton 100,000.00$        Jasper 40,000.00$          
Dade 100,000.00$        Mississippi 40,000.00$          
Camden 98,500.00$          Montgomery 40,000.00$          
Franklin 80,000.00$          Ralls 40,000.00$          
Monroe 80,000.00$          Christian 40,000.00$          
New Madrid 80,000.00$          Johnson 40,000.00$          
Wright 80,000.00$          Wayne 40,000.00$          
Stone 80,000.00$          Benton 20,000.00$          
Macon 80,000.00$          Hickory 20,000.00$          
Maries 80,000.00$          Howard 20,000.00$          
Mercer 80,000.00$          Howell 20,000.00$          
Ripley 80,000.00$          Iron 20,000.00$          
Bollinger 80,000.00$          Ray 20,000.00$          
Dallas 60,000.00$          St Charles 20,000.00$          
Greene 60,000.00$          Ste Genevieve 20,000.00$          
Laclede 60,000.00$          Sullivan 20,000.00$          
Osage 60,000.00$          Vernon 20,000.00$          
Cedar 60,000.00$          Webster 20,000.00$          
Shannon 60,000.00$          Carter 20,000.00$          
Moniteau 60,000.00$          Linn 20,000.00$          
Perry 60,000.00$          Stoddard 20,000.00$          
Audrain 60,000.00$          



Master Fund Status Summary 
# Contract % Contract #Contract 

District Allocated Obligated %Obligated Contracts Pa:yment Pa:yment Pa:yments Pending -
Y: 2°'14 Fun!f Code:R Pr.oject:A WM - ANIMAL WASTE MANAGEMENT 

C'0 $920,000.00 $511,031.54 55.55% 21 $511,031.54 55.55% 21 $0.00 

0 
iFY: 2014 Fund Code:R Project:CC - PILOT COVER CROP 

$55,000.00 $47,610.00 86.56% 23 $47,610.00 86.56% 23 $0.00 

!FY: 20il 4 Fund Code:R Project:GM - GRAZING MANAGEMENT 

$4,249,250.00 $2,681,479.83 63.10% 816 $2,681,479.83_ 63.10% 816 $0.00 

IFY.: 2014 Fund Code:R Pr.oject:IM - IRRTGA TION MANAGEMENT 

$1,222,122.00 $771,831.30 63.16% 180 $771,831.30 63.16% 180 $0.00 

Y: 2014 Fund Code:R Project:NP - NUTRIENT & PEST MANAGEMENT 

$905,371.00 $378,187.91 41.77% 406 $378,187.91 41.77% 406 $0.00 

\FY: 20.14 FundCode:R Project:PM - PEST MANAGEMENT 

$0.00 $0.00 0.00% 0 $0.00 0.00% 0 $0.00 

IFY: 2014 Fund Code:R Project:SA - SENSITIVE AREAS 

$2,317,788.00 $1,010,355.85 43.59% 351 $1,010,355.85 43.59% 351 $0.00 

Y: 2014 Fund Code:R Project:SGE - SHEET AND RILL I GULLY EROSION 

$19,875,749.72 $16,791,984.24 84.48% 2947 $16,791,984.24 84.48% 2947 $0.00 

fFv: 20!1 4 Fund Code:R Project: WE - WOODLAND EROSION 

$1,492,363.00 $721,827.63 48.37% 226 $721,827.63 48.37% 226 $0.00 

Subtotal for R $31,037,643.72 $22,914,308.30 73.83% 4970 $22,914,308.30 73.83% 4970 $0.00 

\FY: 20i14 Fund Code:SN Project:BDSP-31 - BUFFER SINKHOLE IMP 
$15,600.00 $4,200.00 26.92% 14 $4,200.00 26.92% 14 $0.00 

!FY: 2014 Fund Code:SN Project:SN083 - LOWER COLE CAMP 

02/05/2015 9:30:58AM Page 1 of4 



Master Fund Status Summary 
# Contract % Contract #Contract 

District Allocated Obligated %Obligated Contracts Pa:yment Pa:yment Pa:yments Pending 

$35,000.00 $7,222.70 20.64% 8 $7,222.70 20.64% 8 $0.00 

Y: 20'14 Fund Cod~:SN Prroject;SN085 -G~ YS CRJJ;.EJ~ 
$44,770.00 $44,321.36 99.00% 8 $44,321.36 99.00% 8 $0.00 

Y: 20114 Fund Code:SN Pr:oject:SN086 - MIDDLE F~UU(_~ALT RIVER 

$49,000.00 $48,734.83 99.46% 6 $48,734.83 99.46% 6 $0.00 

Y:20M Fund Code:SN Pr:oject·:SNQ8'7 - LOWER L@lJTQE 

$33,500.00 $23,360.81 69.73% 9 $23,360.81 69.73% 9 $0.00 

~:2014 Fund Code:SN Pr:oject:SN088 - LITTLE MAJHES C~EI\ 

$36,225.00 $35,039.09 96.73% 11 $35,039.09 96.73% 11 $0.00 

----
¥: 2014 Fund Code:SN Proj~ct:SN089 - PEMISCOT CLAY ROOT 

$68,700.00 $18,355.94 26.72% 10 $18,355.94 26.72% 10 $0.00 

Yi: 2014 Fund Code:SN Project:SN090 - ~ALT FOR!J{ CREEK 

$57,000.00 $44,693.95 78.41% 8 $44,693.95 78.41% 8 $0.00 

""I 

Yi: Wi4 Fiond Code:SN Pr:ojec~:SN091- ST. JOHN'S B.A'YOTJ 

$54,000.00 $35,399.30 65.55% 6 $35,399.30 65.55% 6 $0.00 

iFY: 2014 Fund Code:SN Froj_~~t:SN093 - HURIUC1'NJ1: CREEK AND LITTLE WJIITEW ATER 

$74,000.00 $43,074.50 58.21% 9 $43,074.50 58.21% 9 $0.00 

Y:20!l4 Fund Code:SN Project:SN094 - BYRD CREEK 

$21,700.00 $11,085.53 51.09% 5 $11,085.53 51.09% 5 $0.00 

IF~~ : 2014 . Fund ·Code:SN PrQj~ct:SN095 - TJP,P:ER BIG CREEK 

$75,000.00 $19,301.75 25.74% 15 $19,301.75 25.74% 15 $0.00 

Y: 2014 Fund Code:SN Pr.oject:SN096 - CROWLEY'S RliDGE 

02/05/2015 9:30:58AM Page 2 of 4 



Master Fund Status Summary 
# Contract % Contract #Contract 

District Allocated Obligated %Obligated Contracts Pa;yment Pa;yment Pa;ylnents Pending 

$44,655.00 $43,682.73 97.82% 19 $43,682.73 97.82% 19 $0.00 

Y: 20:t4 Fund Oode:SN Pr.oject:SN097 - PEARSON CREEK 

$62,000.00 $9,476.92 15.29% 7 $9,476.92 15.29% 7 $0.00 

Y: 20lJ. 4 Fund .Code:SN P.roject:SN098 - WARM FORK OF SPRING RIVER 

$51,450.00 $4,454.00 8.66% 17 $4,454.00 8.66% 17 $0.00 

~Y: 2014 Fund Coqe:SN PrQj~ct:SN099 - HEATHS C.RE.fj:K 

$66,505.00 $63,692.22 95.77% 12 $63,692.22 95.77% 12 $0.00 

Y: 20lJ. 4 Fu9d Code:SN Proj~ct:SNlOO - ELK FO}U( SALT .R!IVER &. COON CRE'EK 

$37,300.00 $0.00 0.00% 0 $0.00 0.00% 0 $0.00 

[FY: 20~4 Fund Code:SN Proje~t:SN10 lJ. - CROOK.ED RIVER 

$70,000.00 $69,906.35 99.87% 5 $69,906.35 99.87% 5 $0.00 

r--
[FY: 2014 Fund Code:SN Prpject:SNl02 - SOUTH WYACONDA 

$55,432.00 $45,267.57 81.66% 5 $45,267.57 81.66% 5 $0.00 

f Y: 20!1 4 Fund Code:SN Proje~t:SN103 - LOWER HEADWATERS OF JAMES RIVER 

$73,740.00 $23,113.72 31.34% 10 $23,113.72 31.34% 10 $0.00 

IFY: 2014 Fund Code:SN Project:SN]'04 - CLARK I WOLF CREEK 

$64,980.00 $57,591.67 88.63% 4 $57,591.67 88.63% 4 $0.00 

Subtotal for SN I $1,090,557 .00 $651,974.94 59.78% 188 $651,974.94 59.78% 188 $0.00 

02/05/2015 9:30:58AM Page 3 of 4 



Master Fund Status Summary 

Master Fund Status Summary (2014) 
Subtotal for R I $31,037,643.72 $22,914,308.30 73.83% 4970 $22,914,308.30 73.83% 4970 r- · _ · _ so.oo·. 

~ 

I 188 f _ 
~ 

$1,090,557.00 $651,974.94 59.78% 188 $651,974.94 59.78% $0.00, Subtotal for SN 
, -· 

Report Totals I $32,128,200. 72 $23,566,283.24 73.35% 5158 $23,566,283.24 73.35% 5158r. $0.00, 

02/05/2015 9:30:58AM Page 4 of 4 



State Practice Totals r, 

FY,: 2014 FundCode:R 

Number Avg CS$ Total Tons Cost Per Avg Tons 
Of Per Saved Over Ton Over Saved Per Extents 

Practice Practices SWCP CS$ Practice Life Span Life Span Practice Acres Installed Unit 
C650 I $2,500.00 $2,500.00 0.00 $0.00 0.00 0.00 650.0000 FT 
DFR-04 I $1,258.20 $1,258.20 0.00 $0.00 0.00 3.50 3.5000 AC 
DFR-05 3 $5,899.06 $1,966.35 0.00 $0.00 0.00 221.00 3,893 .0000 FT 

DSL-01 421 $1 ,328,527 .29 $3,155.65 328,032.00 $4.05 779.17 9,481.40 9,576.8200 AC 

DSL-02 123 $291,502.70 $2,369.94 87,454.10 $3.33 711.01 3,251.38 3,336.7000 AC 

DSL-04 130 $508,794.66 $3,913.81 127,479.00 $3.99 -980.61 2,712.90 370,056.7000 FT 

DSL-05 75 $328, 152.56 $4,375.37 42,774.00 $7.67 570.32 1,127.10 77,620.0000 FT 

DSL-11 47 $85,772.13 $1,824.94 7,825 .00 $10.96 166.49 128.35 53.8000 AC 

DSL-111 I $2,500.00 $2,500.00 1,100.00 $_2.27 1,100.00 5.00 5.0000 AC 

DSL-44 969 $9,133,307.50 $9,425 .50 790,475.00 $11.55 815.76 14,100.89 2,755,801.1000 FT 

DSP 3.1 71 $333,092.33 $4,691.44 0.00 $0.00 0.00 6,098.44 5,997.1400 AC 

DSP 3.2 259 $1,251,997 .57 $4,833.97 0.00 $0.00 0.00 16,878.37 17,655.8700 AC 

DSP 3.3 232 $651,658 .08 $2,808.87 0.00 $0.00 0.00 16,192.22 16,149.7200 AC 

DSP 3.4 142 $241,415.06 $1,700.11 0.00 $0.00 0.00 7,409.75 139,656.9500 AC 

DSP 3.5 35 $54,370.49 $1 ,553.44 0.00 $0.00 0.00 1,975.20 1,970.9700 AC 

DSP-02 77 $148,946.30 $1 ,934.37 6,976.00 $21.35 90.60 2,053 .90 2,058.2000 AC 

DSP-31 57 $137,041.41 $2,404.24 8,370.00 $16.37 146.84 238.80 36,740.0000 CU YD 

DWC-01 234 $2,095,257.16 $8,954.09 88,410.00 $23.70 377.82 4,140.80 946,945 .7000 CU YD 

DWP-OJ 253 $1,225,319.90 $4,843 .16 68,840.00 $17.80 272.09 2,937.72 286,183.1000 CU YD 

DWP-03 335 $1,033,889 .84 $3,086.24 88,140.00 $11.73 263 .10 11,009.00 18,542.7800 AC 

N312 BEEF 6 $145,632.89 $24,272.15 0.00 $0.00 0.00 1.00 381.0000 AU 

N312 DAIRY 2 $47,473.40 $23,736.70 0.00 $0.00 0.00 0.00 400.0000 AU 

N312POULTRY 9 $211 ,646.00 $23,516.22 0.00 $Q.OO 0.00 304.00 309.0000 AU 

N317 4 $106,279 .25 $26,569.81 0.00 $0.00 0.00 10.00 2,345.0000 AU 

N340 23 $47,610 .00 $2,070.00 0.00 $0.00 0.00 669.30 637.7000 AC 

N351 137 $68,441.69 $499.57 0.00 $0.00 0.00 95 .10 182.8000 EA 

N386 8 $10,440.41 $1 ,305.05 36.00 $290.01 4.50 95.30 8.5000 AC 

N391 5 $36,566.27 $7,313 .25 40.00 $914.16 8.00 19.02 19.7200 AC 

N410 359 $758,960.50 $2,114.10 70,580.00 $10.75 196.60 20,035.55 454.0000 EA 

N430 141 $663,932.96 $4,708 .74 368,426.00 $1.80 2,612.95 8,525.33 104,471.0000 FT 

N442 18 $60,257.88 $3,347.66 12,700.00 $4.74 705 .56 1,908.91 6,585 .0000 AC 

Fiscal Year >= 2014, Fiscal Year <= 2014, Sort By Fiscal Year, Fund Code, Practice 
02/05/2015 10:02:26AM Page 1 of3 



State Practice Totals 

N443 19 $35,372.83 $1,861.73 58,550.00 $0.60 3,081.58 1,505.40 810.9000 AC 

N472 222 $714,670.37 $3,219.24 32,639.00 $21.90 147.02 7,392.32 33,042.0000 AC 

N554 I $12,000.00 $12,000.00 0.00 $0.00 0.00 42.00 42.0000 AC 

N574 67 $141,687.32 $2,114.74 0.00 $0.00 0.00 30.00 69.1000 EA 

N587 1 $267.63 $267.63 0.00 $0.00 0.00 80.00 80.0000 AC 

N590 142 $187,930.67 $1,323.46 1,953.70 $96.19 13 .76 10,154.52 9,623 .0200 AC 

N595 264 $190,257.24 $720.67 0.00 $0.00 0.00 20,047.15 19,358.9740 AC 

N725 3 $3,741.93 $1,247.3 I 0.00 $0.00 0.00 12.00 6.2000 AC 

WQIO 73 $609,936.82 $8,355.30 0.00 $0.00 0.00 655 .26 147,190.4800 FT 

Total 4,970 $22,914,308.30 $4,610.52 2,190,799.80 $10.46 440.80 171,547.88 

FY: 20i 4 
., 

Fung Code: SN ,, 
Number Avg CS$ Total Tons Cost Per Avg Tons 

Of Per Saved Over Ton Over Saved Per Extents 
Practice Practices SWCPCS$ Practice Life Span Life Sl!an Practice Acres Installed Unit 

BDSP-31 14 $4,200.00 $300.00 0.00 $0.00 0.00 0.00 14.0000 EA 

DSL-01 3 $13,496.22 $4,498.74 2,581.00 $5.23 860.33 98.70 58.7000 AC 

DSL-04 2 $6,600 .68 $3,300.34 230.00 $28.70 115.00 91.00 6,230.0000 FT 

DSL-11 3 $5,812.62 $1,937.54 75 .00 $77.50 25.00 2.60 2.6000 AC 

DSL-44 27 $228,605 .4 I $8,466.87 14,546.00 $15 .72 538.74 345.20 80,754.0000 FT 

DSP 3.1 2 $7,281.98 $3,640.99 0.00 $0.00 0.00 114.80 114.8000 AC 

DSP 3.2 11 $47,867.64 $4,351 .60 0.00 $0.00 0.00 572.70 578.8000 AC 

DSP 3.3 10 $19,225.10 $1,922.51 0.00 $0.00 0.00 577.08 651.6800 AC 

DSP 3.5 1 $1,268.56 $1,268.56 0.00 $0.00 0.00 46 .00 46.0000 AC 

DSP-02 2 $4,609.88 $2,304.94 0.00 $0.00 0.00 52.00 52.0000 AC 

DWC-01 10 $81 ,475 .18 $8,147.52 2,040.00 $39.94 204.00 126.97 27,438.0000 CU YD 

DWP-01 11 $40,949.49 $3,722.68 2,190.00 $18.70 199.09 135.10 10,704.0000 CU YD 

DWP-03 5 $20,191.11 $4,038 .22 670.00 $30.14 134.00 191.00 7.6400 AC 

N312 DAIRY 1 $47,202.83 $47,202.83 0.00 $0.00 0.00 0.00 125.0000 AU 

N351 3 $1,600.00 $533 .33 0.00 $0.00 0.00 0.00 4.0000 EA 

N386 1 $2,422.51 $2,422.51 0.00 $0.00 0.00 2.50 2.5000 AC 

N410 18 $28,314.92 $1,573.05 1,800.00 $15.73 100.00 793.90 10.0000 EA 

N430 8 $33,488.93 $4,186.12 43,970.00 $0.76 5,496.25 500.70 5,157.0000 FT 

N442 1 $2,279.62 $2,279.62 0.00 $0.00 0.00 83 .20 78.1000 AC 

N443 3 $3,086.25 $1 ,028.75 11,100.00 $0.28 3,700.00 I 11.00 111 .0000 AC 

Fiscal Year>= 2014, Fiscal Year <= 2014, Sort By Fiscal Year, Fund Code, Practice 

02/05.'?.015 10:02:26AM Page 2 of3 



Stale Practice Totals 
n 

-1'. 

N472 4 $11 ,711.29 $2,927.82 564.00 $20.76 141.00 49.40 48.3500 AC 

N574 2 $4,652.05 $2,326.03 0.00 $0.00 0.00 14.50 2.0000 EA 

N590 15 $14,096.92 $939.79 21.20 $664.95 1.41 804.40 724.2000 AC 

N595 30 $8,502.00 $283.40 0.00 $0.00 0.00 859.90 850.2000 AC 

WQlO 1 $13,033 .75 $13,033.75 0.00 $0.00 0.00 13.50 4,301.0000 FT 

Total 188 $651,974.94 $3,467.95 79,787.20 $8.17 424.40 5,586.15 

Total 5,158 $23,566,283.24 $4,568.88 2,2 70,587 .00 $10.38 440.21 177,134.03 

Fiscal Year >= 2014, Fiscal Year <= 2014, Sort By Fiscal Year, Fund Code, Practice 

02/05/2015 10:02:26AM Page 3 of 3 



President 
KENNY LOVELACE 

NACD Board Member 
2605 County Road 325 

Palmyra, MO 63461 
(573) 822-2545 

kennyll@centurvtel .net 

1st Vice President 
BRUCE BIERMANN 

1529 Sunset Blvd 
Mound City, MO 64470 

(660) 491-5263 

2nd Vice-President 
BEVERLY DOMETRORCH 

Alternate NACD Member 
2670 Highway 240 

Fayette, MO 65248 
(660) 248-2645 

3rd Vice-President 
DAN GREESON 
29 Pin Oak Road 

Eldon, MO 65026 
(573) 392-3208 

Past President 
STEVE RADCLIFF 

PO Box571 
Chillicothe, MO 64601 

(660) 247-1255 
stevenr@greenhills .net 

AREA DIRECTORS 

Area I 
BRUCE BIERMANN 

1529 Sunset Blvd 
Mound City, MO 64470 

(660) 491-5263 

Area II 
DAVID MORRIS 
3454 Highway A 

Chillicothe, MO 64601 
(660) 684-6685 

Area Ill 
RYAN BRITI 

11764 Highway 3 
Clifton Hill, MO 65244 

(660) 676-4898 

Area IV 
BEVERLY DOMETRORCH 

2670 Highway 240 
Fayette, MO 65248 

(660) 248-2645 

Area V 
GEORGE ENGELBACH 

3489 Linhorst Road 
Hillsboro, MO 63050 

(636) 475-6328 

Area VI 
BEN GORDEN 

2282 E. 4601h Road 
Half Way, MO 65663 

( 417) 328-8899 

Area VII 
DAN GREESON 

29 Pin Oak Road 
Eldon, MO 65026 

(573) 392-3208 

Area VIII 
MIKE KELLEY 

RR 2 Box 4805 
Ellsinore, MO 63937 

(314) 753-1730 

Missouri Association of Soil and Water Conservation Districts 

January 12, 2015 

Missouri Soil & Water Districts Commission 
PO Box 176 
Jefferson City, MO 65102 

Commissioners: 

D. 6. 

Enclosed is the resolution passed at the Annual Meeting of the 
Missouri Association of Soil and Water Conservation Districts held 
December 11 , 2014 that is asking for action from the Soil and Water 
Commission. 

We appreciate your consideration of this request 

Kenny Lovelace 
MASWCD President 

Ben Gorden 
Resolutions Chair 

CONSERVATION - DEVELOPMENT- SELF-GOVERNMENT 

Executive Director 
PEGGY LEMONS 
1209 Biscayne Drive 
Jefferson City, MO 65109 
(573) 893-6790 or 893-5188 
peggyl@maswcd.net 

Treasurer 
HENRY HEINZE 
RR 1 Box 76 
Williamstown, MO 63473 
(660) 988-3901 
hhh@marktwain.net 



Resolution #2014-02 

Proposed by Gasconade County 

Whereas, in 2007 the Soil and Water Conservation Districts Commission elected to 
provide a state wide health care plan based on the desire of the District Boards to better 
serve their employees with adequate, affordable healthcare. 

Whereas, combining the 114 districts into one group plan should allow for substantial 
savings in premiums and allow for equal coverage for all concerned. 

Whereas, the Affordable Care Act requires all individuals to be covered by some sort of 
healthcare insurance. 

Whereas, the Commission contracted with the Missouri Consolidated Health Care 
Program to provide the services needed to cover employees and offer family benefits at 
employee expense. 

Whereas, the premium for family members is 60% of a Technician II salary. 

Therefore, be it resolved: that the Soil and Water Conservation Commission consider 
looking into other options for group health insurance coverage that is more affordable for 
employees and their families. ' 

Resolution Passed - Yes - 47 I No -- 2 



E. 1. a. 

Ste. Genevieve County Soil & Water Conservation District 

conserving 
natural resources 

.fiir 1111r/i1t11r.-

January 9, 2015 

Soil and Water Commission 
Soil and Water Conservation Program 
PO Box 176 
Jefferson City MO 65102 

Dear Commission Members: 

711 Point Basse Drive Ste. Genevieve, MO 63670 
Phone (573) 883-3566 Fax (855)830-7530 

We would like to replace the supervisor position in Area I due to the inability of our 
current board member to fulfill the election term. 

We are recommending Kenneth J. N aeger to fill this unexpired term on the board of the 
Ste. Genevieve County Soil and Water Conservation District. 

Robe1t Eckenfels 
Chairman 
Ste. Genevieve County Soil and Vi,T at er 

C. Ste. Genevieve County Board Members 

ob c rt Eckcn fc ls- Ch a irman, Lynn 1\-ksscr- Vicc Ch airm a n , lWarcclla Uotop-Tn:;isu rcr , 

Kate Kit m111l c r-Scc1·ctary, llcttyVogt-Mcmbcr 

An Equ a l Opportun ity l'rnviclcr & Emplnyc1· 



VERIFICATION OF SUPERVISOR ELIGIBILITY 

o qualify for office, according to Missouri's Code of State Regulations, 
10 CSR 70-2.020, Conduct of Supervisor Elections, a candidate shall: 

1) Be a lai d representative as defined by "The owner, or representative authorized by power of 
attorney, f any farm lying within the soil and water conservation district (SWCO); provided, 

however, t rnt any land representative must be a taxpayer of the county within which the S\VCD 
is located," and 

2) Be a resitll ent taxpaying citizen within that SWCD for two (2) years preceding the appointment 
to the District Board of Supervisors by the Commission, and 

3) Be a cooperator of the SWCD defined as "A person who is actively involved in farming and 
practices conservation activities related to agriculture," and 

4) Resi e in or ovvn a farm lying in the same territory where the board position is vacant. 

The undj igned certify that the candidate meets all of~he above stated eligibility requirements 
to serve as a supervisor for the Ste. Genevieve County Soil and Water Conservation District. 

Chairperso1i (or acting) Signature: 
I 

I 

Candidate Signature: 

IX-15 05/01 /2011 



MINUTES-MISSOURJ SOIL AND WATER DISTRJCTS COMMISSION 
JUNE 28, 2013 

E. 2. 

Page 8 

3. Oregon SWCD 
a. AgNPS SALT Streambank Group Project Proposal 

Colleen Meredith presented the Oregon AgNPS SALT Stream bank Group 
project proposal. The issue before the Commission is: should the 
Commission allow a variance to the $5,000 landowner limit for the C650 
Streambank Stabilization Practice to increase the landowner limit for the 
Warm Fork AgNPS SALT project to $20,000 per landowner? Streambank 
Stabilization Practice cost-share is authorized for: cedar tree revetments, 
rock riprap, bioengineering, seedlings or other plantings to stabilize area, 
and exclusion fence. 

Oregon County Warm Fork of Spring River AgNPS SALT project is one 
of 12 projects that were approved by the Soil and Water Districts 
Commission for the 9111 call in May 2008. The project is in the fifth of 
seven years and the project watersheds supplies 90 percent of the drainage 
to Mammoth Spring. Mammoth Spring is the third largest spring in the 
Ozark Plateau. The average flow is 234 million gallons per day. Waim 
Fork is on the 2012 303 (d) list of impaired waters for bacteria. This 
project addresses nine miles of stream length in the Warm Fork watershed. 
The district has met most of the g9als for the projects and is 64 percent 
complete overall. 

The AgNPS SALT budget for FY 2014 is $51,450 and FY 2015 is 
$11,450 for a total of $62,900. The district would like to request that the 
$62,900 be available for the C650 Streambank Stabilization project for FY 
2014 and FY 2015 . The district is committed to using their regular cost
share funds to complete SALT goals in the other resource concerns. The 
district is requesting additional funding for the project to serve landowners 
involved. 

The district has requests from 14 landowners concerning streambank 
erosion and the district has performed site visits at each location requested 
by a landowner and pictures have been provided. 

The districts future plans and goals are: hydrology and engineering 
workshop planned for in the summer 2013 provided the funding for the 
streambank erosion is available. The Missouri Depaiiment of 
Conservation is providing both the hydrologist and the engineer for the 
workshop, and several other partners are invited to the workshop. The 
district is seeking other agencies for cooperating funding pa1iners, as well 
as investigating a possible 319 project for the watershed. Pending funding 
approval, and after the engineering investigation, there will be additional 
landowner meetings to discuss funding and priorities before staiiing the 
projects. 



' ' 

MINUTES-MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION 
JUNE 28, 2013 
Page 9 

Colleen Meredith presented three Commission Considerations: 1. Allow a 
variance to the $5,000 landowner limit for the C650 Streambank 
Stabilization Practice to increase the landowner limit for the Warm Fork 
AgNPS SALT project to $20,000 per landowner. 2. Allow use of the 
FY14 and FY15 SALT funds for streambank stabilization in this project. 
3. Allow up to $100,000 of additional SALT funds to be added to the 
project once FYI 4 funding is obligated. 

After a brief discussion, H. Ralph Gaw made a motion to allow a variance 
to the $5,000 landowner limit for the C650 Streambank Stabilization 
Practice to increase the landowner limit for the Warm Fork AgNPS SALT 
project to $20,000 per landowner. Thomas Bradley seconded the motion. 
A poll vote was taken. Charles Ausfahl, Gary Vandiver, Thomas Bradley, 
H. Ralph Gaw and Richard Fordyce voted in favor of the motion and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

Gary Vanidver made a motion to allow use of the FY14 and FY15 funds 
for streambank stabilization in this project. Thomas Bradley seconded the 
motion. A poll vote was taken. Charles Ausfahl, Gary Vandiver, Thomas 
Bradley, H. Ralph Gaw and Richard Fordyce voted in favor of the motion 
and the motion carried unanimously. 

H. Ralph Gaw made a motion to allow up to $100,000 of additional SALT 
funds to be added to the project once FY14 funding is obligated. Thomas 
Bradley seconded the motion. A poll vote was taken. Charles Ausfahl, 
Gary Vandiver, Thomas Bradley, H. Ralph Gaw and Richard Fordyce 
voted in favor of the motion and the motion carried unanimously. 

b. Variance for a Landowner Streambank Stabilization Practice 
Colleen Meredith presented a request from the Oregon Soil and Water 
Conservation District requesting a variance for a landowner streambank 
stabilization practice. The landowner's engineering plan provided by the 
Missouri Department of Conservation included the exclusion fence at 25 
feet. Policy for the C650 Streambank Stabilization practice requires that 
the minimum for exclusion area fence is 50 feet. The guidance to the 
landowner was based on the WQ 10 Stream Protection Practice policy of a 
minimum of 25 feet for the exclusion area. The following issue was 
presented: Should the Commission provide a variance on the exclusion 
fence on contract #SA 066-13-0178 for an N391Riparian Forest Buffer 
practice? The following was provided for Commission Consideration: 
Approve a variance on the exclusion fence for contract # SA 066-13-0178 
for a N391 Riparian Forest Buffer Practice to be less than 50 feet. 

After a brief discussion, H. Ralph Gaw made a motion to grant the 
variance request. Charles Ausfahl seconded the motion. A poll vote was 
taken. Thomas Bradley, Gary Vandiver, Charles Ausfahl, H. Ralph Gaw 



& 

Rt 72 Box 2924 Alton, MO 65606 ( 4 1 7~ 778-7561 Ext 3) 

Soil and Water Conservation Commission 
PO Box 176 
Jefferson City, MO 65102 

Dear Commissioners, 

January 30, 2015 

The Oregon County Soll and Water Conservation District Board of Supervisors and staff 
are submitting this letter as a formal request regarding the Warm Fork of Spring River 
AgNPS SALT Streambank Stabilization project. This project has been discussed in 
previous commission meetings which concluded with the approval of the maximum 
dollar amount per landowner to be $20,000. For the following reason, we are asking for 
you to approve a variance for the J.C. Brewer property. 

A portion of the J.C. Brewer property is within the AgNPS SALT boundaries, as indicated 
on the enclosed map. However, the portion needing stabilization work performed ls 
outside ofthe boundaries less than 2000 feet. Engineer, Chris Cash, assessed the 
streambank problems and has found that some issues on the J.C. Brewer property were 
adversely affecting the Shane Armstrong property. Without the proposed streambank 
corrections, the Shane Armstrong property will remain adversely affected. 

Mr. Brewer Is a strong supporter ofthe Missouri Soil and Water Conservation Program 
and would like to use the cost share dollars to implement this much needed project. 
The Oregon County SWCD Board of Supervisors and staff would like to thank you for 
considering our request. 

Thank you, 

7~A~ 
Oregon County Soil and Water 
Conservation District 
Board of Supervisors 



. -=-==----- ' 

~ 
457 . 

3? 

Paul 
Brewer 

11 326 

Stepbm 
Hutcblnson 
244 

Sh11rley 
D~ 
15'4 

Paul 
Brewer 
81 
~ 
182 

Olm 
lluBlell 
254 

15 

Winston 
Shields 
448 

3 
Opal 

---1 Martin, 
Darrell lll . 

~s 

Gan 

~w 

AJ 
Blanke! 
84 

Gem 
Bresee 
126 

i:ti 
162 

~. 
Fomt 
Products 
Incorporated 
326 

! 
4 

Danl 

tr 
Dan!• 

tr 

Do 
All 
18 

' 



E. 4. 

Jeremiah W Qay) Nixon, Governor • Sara Parker Pauley, Dirccror 

OF NATURAL RESOURCES 

CERTIFIED MAIL# 7099 3220 0009 3706 8445 
RETURN REDEIPT REQUESTED 

Mr. Jerry Shell 
8115 Spanker Ridge Dr. 
Bentonville, AR 72712-8855 

Dear Mr. Shell: 

The Soil and Water Conservation Program has received a letter from the Cape Girardeau County 

Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD) requesting assistance in pursuing repayment of 
cost-share funds for a DWP-01 practice, contract number R 12-07-0016, approved by the board 

on December 22, 2006 and payment made on December 26, 2006. 

In letters from the Cape Girardeau SWCD Board of Supervisors dated August 19, 2014 and 
October 31, 2014 you were informed of the maintenance violation on the contract. To correct the 
violation of the maintenance agreement, you \Vere given the opportunity to repair the structure 
and bring the contract back into compliance or repay a prorated amount on the cost-share funds 
received. The district had given an original deadline of October 15, 2014. 

The district board provided adequate time from the date of the first letter to correct the 
maintenance violations or make payment of a prorated a·mount of $282.85. To date the payment 
has not been received nor has the district board heard from you or your representative regarding 
the status of this payment or correcting the maintenance violation. 

In accordance with the Missouri Code of State Regulations 10 CSR70-5.060, repayment is 
requested within 30 days of receipt of this letter in the amount of $282.85. The check or money 
order should be made payable to DNRJSoil and Water Conservation Program which can be 

delivered to the Cape Girardeau Soil and Water Conservation District office or mailed to: 

Department of Natural Resources 
Soil and Water Conservation Program 
PO Box 176 
Jefferson City, Missouri 65102-0176 

"" ~rY 
l kc~cktl l'apcr 



Mr. Shell 
January 12, 2015 
Page Two 

If you feel that a review of this demand for repayment needs to be completed by the Soil and 

Water Districts Commission, your appeal must be received in writing to the address above within 

30 days of receipt of this letter. if you fail to make repayment, this matter will be placed before 

the Soil and Water Districts Commission at their next meeting, which is tentatively scheduled for 

February 11, 2015, for consideration ofreferral to the Missouri Attorney General's Office for 

recovery of these funds. 

Should you have any questions on this matter, please contact Jim Boschert of my staff at the Soil 

and Water Conservation Program PO Box 176, Jefferson City, MO 65102-0176 or by phone at 

573-751-4932. Thank you. 

Sincerely, 

SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM 

Colleen Meredith 
Program Director 

CM:tm 

c: Cape Girardeau SWCD 



.. ..... · 

Complete-items 1, 2, and 3. Also complete 
item 4 if Restricted Delivery is desired. 
Print your name and address on the reverse 
so that we can return the card to you . 
Attach this card to the back of the mailplece, 
or on the front if space permits. 

0 Agent 
0 Addressee1 

·very address differen! from.item 1? 
:~nter deliver}i ·kl:ldr~s~ bi Jow: " 

I ii II It I 11 I 11' 111111 It I It al 11 I '1 I' I It I' 1111 ii 11~tJ.i!I al • I • 11 I 11 I 1 ·, ·, ( 

0 Yes 
0 No 

Mr. Jerry Shell . ; . -~ . ~ JAN 1 7 2015 , 
i 

........... _./ ... 
8115 Spanker Ridge Dnve ""~ 
Bentonville AR 72712-8855 ,Service Type 

'1tJ- Certified Mail 
0 Registered 
0 Insured Mail 

·---.... ~ / 
O E~pr;~s Mail I 

· 0 Return Receipt for Merchandise
1 0 C.O.D. ' 

4. Restricted Delivery? (Extra Fee) 

2. Article Number (Copy from service /aqel} 

709°1 6J..d..O ooo C[ 3?o~ ?Jt-;/_1 ~ 
PS Form 3811, July 1999 Domestic Return Receipt 

~ l&\11E'il1Dil ................ . 
.:::r
.:::r-
cO t__~~~~~~~~~~~~-..,...~~~~~~~~--' 

..lJ 
Cl 
["
rn 
IT' 
Cl 
Cl 
Cl 

Postage 

Certified Fee 

Return Receipt Fee 
(Endorsement Required) 

Restricted Delivery Fee 
(Endorsement Required) 

s 

Postmarl< 
Here 

Cl 

ru~~~-=-~~=.;:::;===::;::;:=;::;,.__,..,,,=-~~~~--, ru Name (Please Print Clearly) (To be completed by mailer) 

; s°2-ef-~~;~;,:;«,;'fio~.f"N~-.f. - ----- ---- ---- ----- -- - - --- -- - - - ------- -- --- ------- - - -- -- · 

Total Postage & Fees $ 

g; __ '.(_lL5. ___ ~--V:g_)\J~-~.c ____ R: .~-~~-S)s:_;_.v.::~=--- - - ----- ---- - -- ----
["- c'f.E ~t~e.:i.~1~ ~) ~ I /-e_ A R I -:J..) ! ':2. -- ~ 'i-65 

~ =- '" :. .. ,r.11 

0 Yes 

. I 
102595·99·M·1789 

1 





Date: Jan. 24, 2015 

From: Jerry Shell 

To: Department of Natural Resources 
PO Box 176 
Jefferson City, MO 65102-0176 

Dear Mr. Jim Boschert, 

RECelVE.D 

This is Concerning the letter on repayment of violation of a contract. I contacted the 
Cape Girardeau Soil and Water Conservation Dish·ict office twice by phone about a year 
ago and told them the situation. 

The land was sold on a leas.e agreement to purchase to Gary Michie, PO Box 138, 
Gordonville, MO. I may have signed to give him the approval to install the well for his 
irrigation system but I never receive any money or had anything to do with putting the 
well in or agreeing to any contract or violating the contract. He purchased the land and 
tbenresold it to a .Mr. Kight. 

You need to contact the person who received the money and put the well in. 

Sillcerely, 

CJevr~ 
II Jerry Shell 





Cape Girardeau County 
Soil and Water 
Conservation District 

Ms. Deanna Smith 
Soil & Water Conservation Program 
P.O. Box 176 
Jefferson City, MO 65102-0176 

480 W. Jackson Trails 
Jackson, MO 63755 
(573) 243-1467 EXT 3 

November 24, 2014 ,-

BY~ 

DEC 0 1 2011, 

RE: Jerry Shell c/o Gary Michie Contract# R 12-07-0016 

Dear Ms. Smith: 

At the August 19, 2014 board meeting of the Cape Girardeau County Soil and Water 
Conservation District, contract number R 12-07-0016 for Mr. Jerry Shell c/o Gary Michie was 
discussed. Mr. Shell was notified, by letter dated August 19, 2014, of the violation to the 
contract listed above. The drop pipe had been removed. On October 31, 2014 the Board issued 
a certified letter to Mr. Shell requesting a repayment of funds to be made to the State of Missouri 
in the amount of $282.85 within 30 days of receiving the certified letter. The signature card 
from the certified letter was dated November 4, 2014. Mr. Shell contacted the office on 
November 6, 2014 stating that he does not owe the money because at the time the practices were 
being installed, he was in a lease to own contract with Mr. Michie. I stated that under our policy, 
he was still the legal landowner and since no maintenance agreement was transferred with the 
ground, he was still responsible for the repayment of funds. He stated that he did not believe this 
was correct and did not intend to repay the funds. The board has been instructed to pass this 
matter on to the Soil and Water Conservation Program office. Please let us know if you need 
any additional information or if you have any questions. Thank you for your help in this er. 

Respee fully~ 

Kenny ooler 
Chairman, Cape County SWCD 


